



U.S. Department of Justice

Executive Office for United States Attorneys

United States Attorneys' Bulletin



**EXECUTIVE
OFFICE FOR
UNITED
STATES
ATTORNEYS**

Published by:

*Executive Office for United States Attorneys, Washington, D.C.
For the use of all U.S. Department of Justice Attorneys*

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
COMMENDATIONS.....	331
CLEARINGHOUSE	
Equal Access To Justice Act--Funds For Payment Of Awards Of Attorney Fees In Judgments Against The United States.....	333
POINTS TO REMEMBER	
Coordination Of United States Attorneys' Offices Surveys....	334
Cumulative List Of Changing Federal Civil Postjudgment Interest Rates.....	334
Diplomatic Privileges And Immunities.....	334
Personnel.....	335
Requests For Representation Pursuant To 28 C.F.R. §50.15....	335
CASENOTES	
OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL	
Cases Recently Filed In The Supreme Court By The Solicitor General.....	336
CIVIL DIVISION	
Supreme Court Reverses Lower Court Order Requiring Social Security Administration To Adhere To Judicially-Imposed Time Limits In Adjudicating Disability Claims <u>Heckler v. Day</u>	338
Supreme Court Declines To Apply Equitable Estoppel To Government <u>Heckler v. Community Health Services</u>	339
D.C. Circuit Upholds Tax Equity And Fiscal Responsibility Act Of 1982 Against Origination Clause Challenge <u>Moore v. United States House of Representatives</u>	339
D.C. Circuit Reverses District Court Judgment Which Prohibited The Air Force From Enforcing Its Uniform Dress Regulations So As To Prohibit Military Personnel From Wearing Religious Apparel While On Duty <u>Goldman v. Secretary of Defense</u>	340
District Of Columbia Circuit Stays District Court Order Requiring Appointment Of Independent Counsel To Investigate Whether High-Ranking Officials Committed Crimes In Obtaining Access To Carter Campaign Materials In 1980. <u>Banzhaf v. Smith</u>	341

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
D.C. Circuit Holds Claim To FY '83 Funds Moot Where All Funds Have Been Properly Awarded After Preliminary Injunctive Relief Has Been Denied <u>West Virginia Association of Community Health Centers, Inc. v. Heckler</u>	342
First Circuit Upholds HHS Regulations Applying The "Lump Sum Provision," 42 U.S.C. §602(a)(17), To All AFDC Families <u>Sweeney v. Murray</u>	343
Second Circuit Grants Stay And Rehearing Of Feres-Collateral Order Appeal In Agent Orange Case. <u>In Re: United States; In Re: "Agent Orange" Product Liability Litigation</u>	344
CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION	
Four-Count Indictment Returned Against Klan Leaders Who Conspired To Prevent March By SCLC Members <u>United States v. Handley</u>	345
EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS	
Article III Standing/Subject Matter Jurisdiction: District Court Holds That Local Government Entities Who Sued To Enjoin The Shipment Of Spent Nuclear Fuels Through Their Jurisdictions Lacked Standing <u>Board of Commissioners, County of Cuyahoga v. Nuclear Assurance Corp.</u>	346
APPENDIX	
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE, <u>Rule 6(e)(5)and(6)</u> . (This page should be placed on permanent file, by Rule, in each United States Attorney's library.).....	348
FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE, <u>Rule 404(b) 403</u> . (This page should be placed on permanent file, by Rule, in each United States Attorney's library.).....	350
Coordination Of United States Attorneys' Offices Surveys (Memorandum from Deputy Attorney General Carol E. Dinkins, dated June 7, 1984.).....	351
Cumulative List Of Changing Federal Civil Postjudgment Interest Rates.....	352
Diplomatic Privileges and Immunities (Letter from Department of State to All Embassies in Washington, D.C.).....	353
Listing Of Teletypes To All United States Attorneys.....	355
List of United States Attorneys.....	356

COMMENDATIONS

United States Attorney DANIEL A. BENT and Assistant United States Attorney R. MICHAEL BURKE, District of Hawaii, were commended by Mr. Sam I. Feldman, District Director, Immigration and Naturalization Service, for their outstanding efforts in pursuing criminal prosecutions resulting from investigations conducted by the Immigration and Naturalization Service. Assistant United States Attorney BURKE was particularly commended for his successful prosecutions of United States citizens and aliens involved in major conspiracies to smuggle illegal aliens into the United States, and the prosecution of cases involving Japanese Organized Crime.

Assistant United States Attorneys PATRICK J. FOLEY and CATHERINE S. KILLAM, Northern District of Ohio, were commended by Mr. Everett Loury, District Director, Internal Revenue Service, for their successful prosecution of United States v. Dr. Alan Zimmer. This case involved the evasion of taxes through the use of numerous nominees.

Assistant United States Attorney ROBERT L. GUERRA, Southern District of Texas, was commended by Mr. Alan C. Nelson, Commissioner, Immigration and Naturalization Service, for his outstanding efforts in obtaining convictions in United States v. Merkt. This was the first of the "sanctuary"-type cases to be tried and the favorable result is extremely important to the government in establishing that the rule of law must prevail.

United States Attorney JOSEPH P. RUSSONIELLO and Assistant United States Attorneys JOHN C. GIBBONS and WILLIAM S. FARMER, JR., Northern District of California, and JOHN J. DION, Internal Security Section, Criminal Division, were commended by Mr. William H. Webster, Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for their efforts in the arrest and prosecution of James Durwald Harper, Jr. This was an espionage case comparable in severity to the passage of atomic secrets to the Soviets many years ago.

Assistant United States Attorney PAUL A. KATZ, District of Arizona, was commended by Mr. D. Dean Bibles, State Director, Department of Interior, for his presentation to Bureau Managers regarding criminal prosecutions.

United States Attorney STANLEY MARCUS and Assistant United States Attorneys LEON B. KELLNER, PATRICIA D. KENNY and ALAN I. MISHAEL, Southern District of Florida, were commended by Mr. Peter F. Gruden, Special Agent-in-Charge, Drug Enforcement Administration, Miami, for their intense efforts in United States v. 217.36 metric ton diethyl oxide, a significant initiative to deprive the Colombian cocaine laboratories of diethyl ether.

Assistant United States Attorney CHARLENE A. QUIGLEY, Central District of Illinois, was commended by Mr. Steven A. Bartholow, Deputy General Counsel for the Railroad Retirement Board, for the excellent legal services provided to the agency in United States v. James R. Corn. Through the persistent efforts of Assistant United States Attorney QUIGLEY, the Railroad Retirement Board recovered full reimbursement of a \$8,500 lien under 45 U.S.C. §362 (0).

Assistant United States Attorney BILLIE A. ROSEN, District of Arizona, was commended by Mr. Brian T. Wellesley, Director, Office of Investigation, Internal Revenue Service, for her presentation at the Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force Training Seminar in El Paso, Texas. Assistant United States Attorney ROSEN'S presentation on the use of Klein conspiracy and financial search warrants in multi-agency investigations contributed substantially to the success of the seminar.

Assistant United States Attorney BETSY C. STEINFELD, Northern District of West Virginia, was commended by Mr. John A. Mintz, Assistant Director, Legal Counsel Division, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for her outstanding defense work in Harrison Smith v. Joseph L. Garrett. This case was a Bivens suit against FBI agents and a state police officer. Assistant United States Attorney STEINFELD'S aggressive pursuit of cross examination at trial resulted in a favorable verdict for the defendants.

Assistant United States Attorney F. MARK TERISON, District of Maine, was commended by Mr. Paul F. Day, Major General, Maine Air National Guard, Department of Defense, for his litigation efforts in Anderson v. Amoroso. The efforts of Assistant United States Attorney TERISON, on behalf of the Maine National Guard, will assist all military managers and supervisors in the carrying out of the entire range of their managerial functions.

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS
William P. Tyson, Director

CLEARINGHOUSE

Equal Access To Justice Act--Funds For Payment Of Awards Of
Attorney Fees In Judgments Against the United States

In a recent decision, _____ Comp. Gen. _____ (B-40342.3, March 19, 1984), the Comptroller General of the United States concluded that awards of attorney fees pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2412(b) will be paid from the permanent appropriation established by 31 U.S.C. §1304 for the payment of judicial fee awards in judgments against the United States. However, bad faith awards under section 2412(b) must be paid from agency funds as do awards pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2412(d). The decision includes a brief history of the liability of the United States for attorney fees and analyzes the effect of the Equal Access to Justice Act, Pub. L. No. 96-481, §207, 94 Stat. 2321, 2325 (1981) on the use of the permanent appropriation established by 31 U.S.C. §1304 for the payment of judicial fee awards in judgments against the United States.

Copies of the decision may be obtained by contacting the Legal Services Section, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, on FTS 633-4024, and requesting Publication No. CH-4, 1984.

(Executive Office)

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS
William P. Tyson, Director

POINTS TO REMEMBER

Coordination Of United States Attorneys' Offices Surveys

In a memorandum dated June 7, 1984, which is appended to this issue of the Bulletin, Deputy Attorney General Carol E. Dinkins reiterated the long standing order (DOJ Order No. 2810.1, June 13, 1980) designating the Executive Office for United States Attorneys as the unit of the Department to coordinate all written and telephonic surveys of, as well as questionnaires and visits to, United States Attorneys' offices conducted by Department of Justice offices, boards, divisions, field offices, and Bureaus. This Order also applies when other organizations, such as research groups, government research contractors and grantees, and congressional members and committees, seek information from United States Attorneys' offices through Department units.

(Executive Office)

Cumulative List Of Changing Federal Civil Postjudgment Interest Rates

The Cumulative List of Changing Federal Civil Postjudgment Interest Rates, as provided for in the amendment to the federal postjudgment interest statute, 28 U.S.C. §1961, effective October 1, 1983, is appended to this Bulletin.

(Executive Office)

Diplomatic Privileges and Immunities

Appended to this issue of the Bulletin is a circular note which the Department of State recently sent to all chiefs of mission in Washington, D.C. This note was sent as a part of the State Department's ongoing effort to clarify the meaning of diplomatic privileges and immunities to those individuals in this country who enjoy them. This circular note is reprinted in full for your information. Questions concerning the application of this policy should be directed to Mr. William M. McQuade, Attorney-Advisor, Department of State, FTS 632-3027, or the Office of International Affairs, Criminal Division, FTS 724-7600.

(Executive Office)

Personnel

On June 1, 1984, Mr. Guy G. Hurlbutt resigned as United States Attorney for the District of Idaho. The new court-appointed United States Attorney is Mr. William R. Vanhole.

On June 1, 1984, Anthony C. Liotta was sworn in as Associate Deputy Attorney General. Mr. Liotta was formerly a Deputy Assistant Attorney General in the Land and Natural Resources Division.

Requests for Representation Pursuant to 28 C.F.R. §50.15

Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations Section 50.15 sets forth policy of the Department regarding "representation of Federal officials and employees by Department of Justice attorneys in civil proceedings . . . in which Federal employees are sued or subpoenaed in their individual capacities." Additional policy is located at USAM 4-13.000.

The above-cited regulation requires that United States Attorneys, Assistant U.S. Attorneys, and other U.S. Attorneys' office personnel, sued in their individual capacities, must submit their requests for representation to the Civil Division through the Executive Office for United States Attorneys. The Director of the Executive Office, as the "head of the agency" will request representation by the Civil Division on behalf of the employee. When time constraints are urgent, such representation may be requested telephonically to the Civil Division, Torts Branch. However, such requests must be followed by preparation of the appropriate written request to the Civil Division through the Executive Office.

Questions may be directed to the office of the Assistant Director, Legal Services, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, FTS 633-4024.

(Executive Office)

OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL
Solicitor General Rex E. Lee

The Solicitor General has authorized the filing of:

A direct appeal to the Supreme Court on May 18, 1984, in EEOC v. Martin Industries, Inc., No. 83-1893. The issues are: (1) whether the Supreme Court has jurisdiction over the appeal under 28 U.S.C. §1252 even though the EEOC does not seek review of the district court's holding that the one-House legislative veto provision of the Reorganization Act of 1977, 5 U.S.C. §906, is unconstitutional, but instead seeks review only of the relief ordered by the district court; and (2) whether the district court correctly held that, because the legislative veto provision in the Reorganization Act is unconstitutional, the Commission cannot exercise the authority transferred to it by Reorganization Plan No. 1 of 1978, 3 C.F.R. §321 (1979), to enforce the Equal Pay Act of 1963, 29 U.S.C. §206(d).

A brief amicus curiae in support of the petitioner with the Supreme Court on May 24, 1984, in Oregon v. Elstad, No. 83-773. The issue is whether the Self-Incrimination Clause requires the suppression of a confession, made after proper Miranda warnings and a valid waiver of rights, solely because the police had obtained an earlier admission from the defendant without advising him of his rights, even though the trial court found that the earlier admission was otherwise voluntary, and that it did not "taint" the subsequent confession.

A direct appeal to the Supreme Court on May 29, 1984, in EEOC v. Westinghouse Electric Corp. The issues are identical to those in EEOC v. Martin Industries, Inc.

A brief amicus curiae in support of the petitioner with the Supreme Court on or before June 2, 1984, in California v. Carney, No. 83-859. The issue is whether police officers violated the Fourth Amendment when they conducted a warrantless search, based on probable cause, of a motor home parked in a public parking lot adjacent to the street.

A petition for a writ of certiorari with the Supreme Court on or before June 10, 1984, in United States Department of Justice v. Rios/Pineda. The issues are: (1) whether a court of appeals improvidently encroaches on the authority of the Attorney General and his delegates to rule on motions to reopen deportation proceedings filed by aliens seeking to apply for suspension of deportation, when the court determines that an alien filing a

motion to reopen has made out a prima facie case of "extreme hardship" under 8 U.S.C. §1254(a)(1) before the Board of Immigration Appeals has passed upon the extreme hardship claim; and (2) whether it is improper for the Board of Immigration Appeals to exercise its discretion to deny an alien's motion to reopen on the grounds that [A] the alien has acquired seven years' continuous physical presence only by filing frivolous appeals after a deportation order was in effect, and [B] the alien has evidenced disregard of the immigration laws by refusing to comply with a lawful order to depart voluntarily and by using a paid smuggler to reenter this country.

A petition for a writ of certiorari with the Supreme Court on or before June 16, 1984, in Bell v. New Jersey. The issue is whether the conditions for eligibility for educational grants-in-aid to the states contained in the 1978 amendment to the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 apply to grants made and expended in 1970-1973.

A petition for a writ of certiorari with the Supreme Court on or before June 16, 1984, in EEOC v. Falkowski. The issue is whether a decision of the Attorney General or his representative declining to provide legal representation for a federal employee who is sued in his individual capacity is subject to judicial review under the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§701-706, or whether such a decision is a matter "committed to agency discretion by law" and consequently exempt from review under 5 U.S.C. §701(a)(2).

CIVIL DIVISION
Acting Assistant Attorney General Richard K. Willard

Heckler v. Day, ___ U.S. ___, No. 82-1371 (May 22, 1984). D.J. #
138-78-67.

SUPREME COURT REVERSES LOWER COURT ORDER
REQUIRING SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION TO
ADHERE TO JUDICIALLY-IMPOSED TIME LIMITS IN
ADJUDICATING DISABILITY CLAIMS.

Over the past ten years various district courts have entered orders requiring the Secretary of HHS to comply with judicially-devised mandatory time limits in adjudicating Social Security claims, and, where the time limits are not met, to pay interim benefits to the claimants suffering delay. We consistently have maintained, without much success in the lower courts, that the courts lack power under the Social Security Act to order time limits or the payment of interim benefits. This term we took those issues to the Supreme Court. The Court, in a 5-4 decision, has just invalidated judicial imposition of mandatory time limits under the Social Security Act. The Court viewed such time limits as inconsistent with Congress' pervasive regulation of Social Security procedures, and with Congress' consistent refusal to require mandatory time limits. In view of its decision on the time limits issue, the Court did not reach the question of interim benefits. The Court also did not address plaintiffs' alternate theories that the Constitution and the Administrative Procedure Act justify mandatory time limits. But, because of the opinion's language on congressional intent, plaintiffs will have great difficulty prevailing on those theories on remand.

Attorneys: William Kanter
FTS 633-1597

John Cordes
FTS 633-4214

CIVIL DIVISION
Acting Assistant Attorney General Richard K. Willard

Heckler v. Community Health Services, _____ U.S. _____, No.83-56
(May 21, 1984). D.J. # 137-64-516.

SUPREME COURT DECLINES TO APPLY EQUITABLE
ESTOPPEL TO GOVERNMENT.

The Supreme Court has ruled that a provider of health care services under the Medicare program may not estop the government from recovering overpayments, even when the overpayments result from erroneous oral advice given on several occasions by a fiscal intermediary. The Court held that a private party suing the government on an estoppel theory will not prevail without first demonstrating that the traditional elements of an estoppel are present. In the case before it, the Court found the element of reasonable reliance to be lacking, since the provider should have been on notice that his fiscal intermediary was merely a "conduit" whose advice was made subject to reopening and revision by provisions of the Medicare Act and the Secretary of HHS' regulations. While the Court characterized the Department's argument that estoppel may never apply to the government as "substantial," the Court ruled that oral advice may not be the basis for an estoppel of the government, and acknowledged once again that relevant statutes and regulations cannot be undermined by a government agent's erroneous advice, it declined to hold that there are no cases in which a private party may estop the government.

Attorneys: William Kanter
FTS 633-1597

Richard Olderman
FTS 633-4052

Moore v. United States House of Representatives, No. 83-1077 (D.C. Cir. May 4, 1984). D.J. # 145-11-315.

D.C. CIRCUIT UPHOLDS TAX EQUITY AND FISCAL
RESPONSIBILITY ACT OF 1982 AGAINST ORIGINATION
CLAUSE CHALLENGE.

This case involved a challenge to the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982, and was filed by a group of congressional members who argued that the Act was unconstitutional because it originated in the wrong House of Congress, thereby violating the Origination Clause. The district court dismissed

CIVIL DIVISION
Acting Assistant Attorney General Richard K. Willard

the case on the alternative grounds of lack of standing and exercise of its "equitable discretion" not to decide the case. On appeal, we made both of those arguments, and urged the court of appeals to reaffirm the high barrier to congressional standing established by the D.C. Circuit in prior cases. The court affirmed the dismissal. Two judges concluded that the Members of Congress had standing to raise the Origination Clause issue, but that the district court correctly declined to hear the case under its equitable discretion because the case involved a suit by Members of Congress against other Members of Congress and because private plaintiffs should be able to raise the issue within the context of a tax refund suit. The third judge concurred in the dismissal, but believed that the congressional plaintiffs lacked standing because of separation of powers principles.

Attorneys: Leonard Schaitman
FTS 633-3441

Douglas Letter
FTS 633-3427

Goldman v. Secretary of Defense, No. 83-1723 (D.C. Cir. May 8, 1984). D.J. # 35-16-1788.

D.C. CIRCUIT REVERSES DISTRICT COURT JUDGMENT
WHICH PROHIBITED THE AIR FORCE FROM ENFORCING
ITS UNIFORM DRESS REGULATIONS SO AS TO
PROHIBIT MILITARY PERSONNEL FROM WEARING
RELIGIOUS APPAREL WHILE ON DUTY

In this case, an Air Force Captain, assigned duties as a clinical psychologist at an Air Force base hospital, sought to wear religious apparel (a skull cap) while on duty. Air Force uniform regulations are highly specific and do not permit exceptions for religious apparel. The plaintiff was directed to conform his dress to the requirements of the uniform regulations. Plaintiff then brought suit, and the district court, relying on the free exercise clause of the First Amendment, enjoined the Air Force from enforcing its uniform regulations against the plaintiff so as to prohibit his wearing of religious apparel while on duty.

The court of appeals reversed the district court's judgment. The panel acknowledged that the Air Force's decision--that strict compliance with the uniform regulations is an important method of instilling discipline--was within its particular area of expertise

CIVIL DIVISION

Acting Assistant Attorney General Richard K. Willard

and entitled to deference by the courts. The panel thus acceded to the Air Force's judgment that, even though its dress code is arbitrary, exceptions to the code cannot be made for any reason without engendering resentment among those forced to comply with the code's requirements, thus undermining the military's attempts to foster discipline, teamwork, and esprit de corps among its personnel.

The panel followed Rostker v. Goldberg, 453 U.S. 57, in adopting a standard of review. The panel construed Goldberg as not requiring a balancing of competing interests, but merely "a determination whether legitimate military ends are sought to be achieved by means designed to accommodate the individual right to an appropriate degree."

Attorneys: Anthony Steinmeyer
FTS 633-3388

Alfred Mollin
FTS 633-4331

Banzhaf v. Smith, No. 84-5304 (D.C. Cir. May 18, 1984). D.J. #
145-12-5592

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA CIRCUIT STAYS DISTRICT
COURT ORDER REQUIRING APPOINTMENT OF INDEPEN-
DENT COUNSEL TO INVESTIGATE WHETHER HIGH-RANK-
ING OFFICIALS COMMITTED CRIMES IN OBTAINING
ACCESS TO CARTER CAMPAIGN MATERIALS IN 1980.

This case involves claimed criminal misconduct by high-ranking officials during the 1980 presidential campaign. Plaintiffs are two law professors who submitted information to the Attorney General concerning the Reagan campaign's use of Carter campaign documents. Plaintiffs demanded appointment of an independent counsel under the Ethics in Government Act. The Attorney General declined to invoke the Ethics Act on the ground that he had not received sufficiently "specific" allegations against high-ranking officials. Plaintiffs then filed this lawsuit, and obtained an order from the district court on May 14 requiring the Attorney General to seek appointment of independent counsel within seven days. We immediately appealed and sought an emergency stay pending appeal. On May 18, a three-judge

CIVIL DIVISION

Acting Assistant Attorney General Richard K. Willard

motions panel of the D.C. Circuit granted the stay pending appeal. In addition the entire court, sua sponte, decided to hear this appeal en banc.

Attorneys: Leonard Schaitman
FTS 633-3441

John Cordes
FTS 633-4214

West Virginia Association of Community Health Centers, Inc. v. Heckler, No. 83-2113 (D.C. Cir. May 18, 1984). D.J. # 145-16-2367.

D.C. CIRCUIT HOLDS CLAIM TO FY '83 FUNDS MOOT WHERE ALL FUNDS HAVE BEEN PROPERLY AWARDED AFTER PRELIMINARY INJUNCTIVE RELIEF HAS BEEN DENIED.

Plaintiffs challenged HHS's interpretation of the block grant statute providing financial assistance to states to support community health care centers and asserted that West Virginia should receive more money for fiscal years 1983 and 1984. On the last day of fiscal 1983, plaintiffs were informed that a preliminary injunction would not be issued to preserve funds out of that year's appropriation and, as previously announced to plaintiffs and the district court, HHS obligated the remaining 1983 funds to non-parties. Plaintiffs asked the appellate court to reverse the denial of preliminary relief and to decide the merits of the case on this appeal.

The D.C. Circuit, however, held the claim to fiscal 1983 funds moot and remanded to determine mootness as to 1984 and, failing further mootness, the merits of the statutory interpretation. The court expressly refused to apply the recently fashioned equitable doctrine which has permitted funds to be awarded after the end of the fiscal year where the action was instituted on or before that date and the funds had lapsed through nonuse. (See, e.g., Connecticut v. Schweiker.) The court held that doctrine assumes funds remain at the end of the year, and has no application "to a case in which all funds have been properly awarded." Moreover, the court declined to treat funds as "available" simply because the grantee may not yet have expended them.

Attorneys: Anthony Steinmeyer
FTS 633-3388

Edward R. Cohen
FTS 633-4331

CIVIL DIVISION
Acting Assistant Attorney General Richard K. Willard

Sweeney v. Murray, Nos. 83-1738-39 (1st Cir. Apr. 27, 1984). D.J.
145-16-2266.

FIRST CIRCUIT UPHOLDS HHS REGULATIONS APPLYING
THE "LUMP SUM PROVISION," 42 U.S.C. §602(a)
(17), TO ALL AFDC FAMILIES.

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 (OBRA) enacted a number of measures designed to cut costs in the AFDC program, including a new provision for the treatment of "lump sum" income. Previously, when an AFDC family received a lump sum payment, such as an inheritance, workmen's compensation award, or personal injury settlement, the family could reapply for AFDC benefits as soon as it spent the lump sum. Under the new provision, 42 U.S.C. §602(a)(17), the family is ineligible for AFDC benefits for a set number of months, derived by dividing the lump sum payment by the family's monthly need standard. Thus, lump sum income is pro rated over a period of time, and the family must budget the income as if it were AFDC assistance for the entire period of ineligibility.

Plaintiffs are a class of AFDC families who received lump sum income, but claimed that the new lump sum provision should not be applied to them because they did not have earned income.

The First Circuit upheld the Secretary's regulation, 42 C.F.R. §233.20(a)(3)(ii)(D), which applies the lump sum provision to all AFDC families, regardless of whether or not they have earned income. The court of appeals first observed that section 602(a)(17) is "anything but elegantly drafted," and that the plain language of the statute did not resolve the issue either way. Because the statutory language was found to be ambiguous, the court looked to the legislative history which showed that Congress intended to effect cost-savings by requiring AFDC families to budget lump sum income over time, rather than spending it immediately. The court of appeals agreed with our argument that Congress could not have intended to restrict application of this provision to only 7% of the AFDC population, those with earned income.

Attorneys: Robert Greenspan
FTS 633-3180

Jenny Sternbach
FTS 633-3388

CIVIL DIVISION
Acting Assistant Attorney General Richard K. Willard

In Re: United States; In Re: "Agent Orange" Product Liability Litigation, MDL # 381, No. 84-3021 (2d Cir. May 4, 1984). D. J. # 157-0-107.

SECOND CIRCUIT GRANTS STAY AND REHEARING OF
FERES-COLLATERAL ORDER APPEAL IN AGENT ORANGE
CASE.

On May 4, the Second Circuit granted a stay of trial proceedings on the third-party claims of the chemical companies against the United States for negligent use of Agent Orange in the Vietnam war. The court also agreed to rehear our contention that we are entitled to an immediate appeal of the district court's denial of our motion to dismiss those claims on the ground that they are barred under the Feres doctrine. On May 7, the plaintiffs and defendants reached a \$180 million settlement of the plaintiffs' claims, but we were not a party to that settlement. On May 8, the court of appeals continued the stay and set a briefing schedule on the collateral-appeal issue.

Attorneys: Robert S. Greenspan
FTS 633-5428

Marc Richman
FTS 633-5735

CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Wm. Bradford Reynolds

United States v. Handley, No. 84C-104-NE (N.D. Ala. May 17, 1984).
D.J. # 144-1-2368.

FOUR-COUNT INDICTMENT RETURNED AGAINST KLAN
LEADERS WHO CONSPIRED TO PREVENT MARCH BY SCLC
MEMBERS.

On May 26, 1979, the Ku Klux Klan blocked a march by the Southern Christian Leadership Conference (SCLC). The original FBI investigation documented an attack by Klan members armed with clubs upon Decatur police officers attempting to clear a path for the marching black demonstrators. The indictment alleges that Klan leaders conspired to prevent the members of SCLC from marching, and instructed Klan members to lie during the anticipated FBI investigation. Defendants Roger Handley, William Riccio, Ray Steele, David Kelso, Terry Tucker, William Mason, Lenwood White, Richey Creekmore and Derane Godfrey were charged with violating 18 U.S.C. §371--conspiracy to violate 18 U.S.C. §245. Defendants Riccio, Steele, Godfrey and Creekmore were charged with violating substantive counts of 18 U.S.C. §245, resulting in injuries to police officers. Defendants Handley, Steele, Riccio, White and Mason were charged with conspiracy to violate 18 U.S.C. §1510, obstructing the investigation by the FBI. Arraignment was scheduled for May 25. Jack Mize had earlier pled guilty to a one count violation of conspiracy to violate 18 U.S.C. §245.

Attorney: Craig Shaffer
FTS 633-4153

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS
William P. Tyson, Director

Board of Commissioners, County of Cuyahoga v. Nuclear Assurance Corp., Case No. C 83-3877 (N.D. Ohio May 24, 1984). D.J. # 145-18-1188

ARTICLE III STANDING/SUBJECT MATTER
JURISDICTION: DISTRICT COURT HOLDS THAT LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ENTITIES WHO SUED TO ENJOIN THE
SHIPMENT OF SPENT NUCLEAR FUELS THROUGH THEIR
JURISDICTIONS LACKED STANDING.

This case is an outgrowth of the decision of the District Court for the Western District of New York (New York State Energy Research and Development Authority v. Nuclear Fuel Services, Civ-82-426 (W.D. N.Y. June 30, 1983)) in which utility defendants were ordered to remove spent nuclear fuel rods from the New York facility. The removal of the nuclear materials called for the transport of these materials across the State of Ohio and through the plaintiffs' jurisdictions. Suit was brought to enjoin the shipment of the spent nuclear fuels and to enjoin ten federal defendant agencies to provide training and assistance to the local governments to prepare for a radiological emergency. Following substantial discovery on the issue of the jurisdiction of the court, the District Court dismissed the action for lack of standing.

The court applied the Article III criteria set forth in Valley Forge Christian College v. Americans United For Separation of Church and State, 454 U.S. 464 (1982) and specifically held that (1) the plaintiffs' alleged injury was too speculative and remote to support standing, i.e., there was no injury in fact. See City of Los Angeles v. Lyons, 75 L.Ed.2d 675 (1983); (2) plaintiffs failed to connect their alleged injury to the challenged conduct of the federal defendants; and (3) plaintiffs failed to show that the alleged injury is likely to be redressed by a favorable decision of the court. Thus, in this case of first impression, the court rejected the threat of potential future

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS
William P. Tyson, Director

injury in the form of possible transportation accidents involving vehicles transporting nuclear material as a basis for maintaining a cause of action.

Attorneys: Patrick M. McLaughlin
Chief, Civil Division
Northern District of Ohio
FTS 293-3913

Dennis P. Zapka
Assistant United States
Attorney
Northern District of Ohio
FTS 293-3950

FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 6(e)(5). The Grand Jury. Recording and Disclosure of Proceedings. Closed Hearing.

Rule 6(e)(6). The Grand Jury. Recording and Disclosure of Proceedings. Sealed Records.

Two witnesses mailed to the Clerk of the Court a motion to quash grand jury subpoenas duces tecum. At the request of the government, with the consent of the witnesses, this motion was not filed but was handed to the court pending a ruling on the government's request under Rule 6(e)(5) and (6) to seal the motion to quash and to close the hearing on this request. The Rule permits a court to order closure of hearings and order sealing of records, orders, and subpoenas "to the extent necessary to prevent disclosure of matters occurring before the grand jury."

Interpreting Rule 6(e)(5) and (6) for the first time, the District Court looked to the Advisory Committee's notes which indicate that the purpose of the Rule is to prevent identity disclosure of grand jury witnesses and targets. While the identity of one witness is already publicly known, factors such as the risk that other individuals about to be indicted would flee or attempt to influence grand jurors and the "chilling effect" the open hearing could have upon future witnesses must be weighed. The court also agreed with the Advisory Committee's determination that these provisions do not violate the public's rights guaranteed by the First and Sixth Amendments of the Constitution. Therefore, the government's requests for a closed hearing and for the records to be sealed were granted.

(Motions granted.)

In re Grand Jury Empanelled March 8, 1983, 579 F. Supp. 189
(E.D. Tenn. Jan. 31, 1984).

FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 6(e)(6). The Grand Jury. Recording and Disclosure of Proceedings. Sealed Records.

See Rule 6(e)(5), this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

In re Grand Jury Empanelled March 8, 1983, 579 F. Supp. 189 (E.D. Tenn. Jan. 31, 1984).

FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE

Rule 404(b) Character Evidence Not Admissible to Prove Conduct; Exceptions; Other Crimes. Other Crimes, Wrongs, or Acts.

Rule 403 Exclusion of Relevant Evidence on Grounds of Prejudice, Confusion, or Waste of Time.

After a Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) investigation, defendant was arrested for heroin distribution. At trial, over the objections raised by the defense, the district court allowed the government to introduce evidence of a prior unindicted "sample" narcotics transaction which occurred on a previous day, in another place and with people other than those involved in the deal for which the defendant was indicted. On appeal, defendant contends that the district court erroneously determined that the evidence of the sample transaction and the evidence of the crime charged were inextricably interwoven and outside Rule 404(b) and 403.

The Court of Appeals stated that Rule 404(b), by its plain language includes any unindicted act and compliance is necessary to minimize prejudice to the defendant. Therefore, the trial court committed reversible error when it allowed the government to introduce evidence of an unindicted drug transaction taking place at a different time, in a different place, and with different people without first determining whether the prior act qualified as an "other act" tending to show a common scheme and whether its introduction outweighed its prejudicial impact.

The court's view is consistent with their holding in U.S. v. O'Connor, 580 F.2d 38 (1978) where the "plan" exception in Rule 404(b) was defined to include "evidence introduced to complete the story of the crime on trial by proving its immediate context of happenings near in time and place" and "evidence offered to show the existence of a definite project intended to facilitate completion of the crime in question."

(Reversed and remanded.)

United States v. Chaim Levy, Nos. 83-1226-27 (2d Cir. Jan. 31, 1984).



U.S. Department of Justice

Office of the Deputy Attorney General

Washington, D.C. 20530

June 7, 1984

MEMORANDUM FOR: All Heads of Department of Justice,
Offices, Boards, Divisions, Field
Offices, and Bureaus

FROM: *Carol E. Dinkins*
Carol E. Dinkins
Deputy Attorney General

SUBJECT: Coordination of United States Attorneys' Offices
Surveys

By long-standing Order, the Executive Office for United States Attorneys is designated as the Department of Justice unit to coordinate all written and telephonic surveys of, as well as questionnaires and visits to, United States Attorneys' offices by Department of Justice Offices, Boards, Divisions, Field Offices, and Bureaus (DOJ Order No. 2810.1, June 13, 1980). This Order also applies when other organizations, such as research groups, government research contractors and grantees, and Congressional committees and members, seek information through Department of Justice units.

This policy addresses the problem of frequent and sometimes duplicative surveys which require extensive research by personnel in the United States Attorneys' offices. However, the burden on the United States Attorneys' offices in this regard is still significant. Therefore, you are reminded to continue to make inquiries of other appropriate Department of Justice units, and of other appropriate governmental units, for desired information prior to submitting formal requests to the Director of the Executive Office for United States Attorneys for information from the United States Attorneys' offices. The Executive Office for United States Attorneys will review and coordinate all requests and will directly request the participation of all or selected United States Attorneys as deemed appropriate. The United States Attorneys will not respond to any surveys or questionnaires not sent from or endorsed by the Executive Office for United States Attorneys.

With your cooperation, we can ensure the most efficient responses to surveys by Department of Justice units, the efficient use of personnel and resources of the United States Attorneys' offices in response to surveys, the avoidance of duplication of research efforts, and the utilization of alternate sources of data.

CUMULATIVE LIST OF CHANGING FEDERAL CIVIL POSTJUDGMENT INTEREST RATES

(as provided for in the amendment to the federal postjudgment interest statute, 28 U.S.C. §1961, effective October 1, 1982)

<u>Effective Date</u>	<u>Annual Rate</u>	<u>Effective Date</u>	<u>Annual Rate</u>
10-01-82	10.41%	08-10-83	10.74%
10-29-82	9.29%	09-02-83	10.58%
11-25-82	9.07%	09-30-83	9.98%
12-24-82	8.75%	11-02-83	9.86%
01-21-83	8.65%	11-24-83	9.93%
02-18-83	8.99%	12-23-83	10.10%
03-18-83	9.16%	01-20-84	9.87%
04-15-83	8.98%	02-17-84	10.11%
05-13-83	8.72%	03-16-84	10.60%
06-10-83	9.59%	04-13-84	10.81%
07-08-83	10.25%	05-16-84	11.74%

NOTE: When computing interest at the daily rate, round (5/4) the product (i.e., the amount of interest computed) to the nearest whole cent.

(Letter from Department of State to All Embassies in Washington, D.C.)

The Secretary of State presents his compliments to their Excellencies and Messieurs and Mesdames, the Chiefs of Mission, and takes this occasion to bring to their attention a matter of serious concern to the Department relating to diplomatic immunity.

From its inception, the Government of the United States has recognized the importance of the principle of diplomatic immunity in the conduct of affairs among nations. For nearly two hundred years, the sanctity of the diplomatic mission and the inviolability of its members, cardinal principles embodied both in domestic statutes and in international law, have been observed by the United States. The Department wishes to assure the missions that the United States, in keeping with its obligations under international law, will continue to adhere to this policy.

The Department is concerned, however, with allegations of criminal activity on the part of a few members of the missions or family members. Although the incidence of such behavior is very small in comparison to the large number of individuals residing in the Washington, D.C. area who enjoy immunity and whose personal conduct is exemplary, the Department is disturbed by the apparent increase of violations of the law involving privileged personnel which have occurred within the last two years.

The Department wishes to advise the missions that, as a matter of policy, in the isolated cases which have arisen - the majority of which involved dependents of mission personnel - the Department has been quick to take appropriate steps to ensure the entitlement to diplomatic immunity of the individuals involved. In the absence of a waiver of immunity by the sending government, in most instances the Department has required that the alleged offender depart the United States immediately. Such action in effect has amounted to the expulsion of that individual from the United States. In addition, one year ago, the Department took the further step of alerting the appropriate authorities of the United States Government of the expulsion of these individuals to provide for the eventuality that such individuals would attempt to reenter the United States.

The missions are advised that, in the case of the commission of a crime attributed to a family member expelled from the United States, the privileges and immunities accorded to that family member under Article 37(1) of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations would terminate upon expulsion. This would apply even though the principal alien from whom privileges and immunities were derived remained in a privileged status in this country.

-2-

In this respect, the situation is analogous to that of a member of a mission whose functions, and thus immunities, are terminated pursuant to Article 43 of the Vienna Convention.

In either case, on the termination of criminal immunity, the bar to prosecution in the United States would be removed and any serious crime would remain as a matter of record. If a person formerly entitled to privileges and immunities returned to this country and continued to be suspected of a crime, no bar would exist to arresting and prosecuting him or her in the normal manner for a serious crime allegedly committed during the period in which he or she enjoyed immunity. This would be the case unless the crime related to the exercise of official functions, or the statute of limitations for that crime had not imposed a permanent bar to prosecution.

Thus, unless the individual concerned desired to face trial for the alleged offense, a crime committed by a person with immunity from criminal jurisdiction would, as a practical matter, carry a penalty of at least a number of years exclusion from entry to the United States. The Department is compelled to add that, in such cases, the full resources of the Department of State would be applied to the detection of the return of such persons and to alerting local law enforcement authorities to their legal rights in the circumstances.

The Department of State regrets exceedingly that unfortunate circumstances have made it necessary to bring to the attention of the Chiefs of Mission the Department's understanding of the law in this regard.

Department of State
Washington, D.C.

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS
William P. Tyson, Director

Teletypes To All United States Attorneys

- 05/31/84--From William P. Tyson, Director, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, by Laurence S. McWhorter, Deputy Director, re: "Interim Bankruptcy Rules."
- 05/31/84--From William P. Tyson, Director, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, by Daniel W. Gluck, Personnel Officer, re: "Changes to Title 10."
- 06/07/84--From William P. Tyson, Director, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, re: "Retroactive Comparability Pay Increase."
- 06/13/84--From William P. Tyson, Director, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, re: "Action to Avoid FY '84 Budget Deficit."

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' LIST

<u>DISTRICT</u>	<u>U.S. ATTORNEY</u>
Alabama, N	Frank W. Donaldson
Alabama, M	John C. Bell
Alabama, S	J. B. Sessions, III
Alaska	Michael R. Spaan
Arizona	A. Melvin McDonald
Arkansas, E	George W. Proctor
Arkansas, W	W. Asa Hutchinson
California, N	Joseph P. Russoniello
California, E	Donald B. Ayer
California, C	Robert C. Bonner
California, S	Peter K. Nunez
Colorado	Robert N. Miller
Connecticut	Alan H. Nevas
Delaware	Joseph J. Farnan, Jr.
District of Columbia	Joseph E. diGenova
Florida, N	W. Thomas Dillard
Florida, M	Robert W. Merkle, Jr.
Florida, S	Stanley Marcus
Georgia, N	Larry D. Thompson
Georgia, M	Joe D. Whitley
Georgia, S	Hinton R. Pierce
Guam	David T. Wood
Hawaii	Daniel A. Bent
Idaho	William R. Vanhole
Illinois, N	Dan K. Webb
Illinois, S	Frederick J. Hess
Illinois, C	Gerald D. Fines
Indiana, N	R. Lawrence Steele, Jr.
Indiana, S	John D. Tinder
Iowa, N	Evan L. Hultman
Iowa, S	Richard C. Turner
Kansas	Benjamin L. Burgess
Kentucky, E	Louis G. DeFalaise
Kentucky, W	Ronald E. Meredith
Louisiana, E	John Volz
Louisiana, M	Stanford O. Bardwell, Jr.
Louisiana, W	Joseph S. Cage, Jr.
Maine	Richard S. Cohen
Maryland	J. Frederick Motz
Massachusetts	William F. Weld
Michigan, E	Leonard R. Gilman
Michigan, W	John A. Smietanka
Minnesota	James M. Rosenbaum
Mississippi, N	Glen H. Davidson
Mississippi, S	George L. Phillips
Missouri, E	Thomas E. Dittmeier
Missouri, W	Robert G. Ulrich

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

<u>DISTRICT</u>	<u>U.S. ATTORNEY</u>
Montana	Byron H. Dunbar
Nebraska	Ronald D. Lahners
Nevada	Lamond R. Mills
New Hampshire	W. Stephen Thayer, III
New Jersey	W. Hunt Dumont
New Mexico	William L. Lutz
New York, N	Frederick J. Scullin, Jr.
New York, S	Rudolph W. Giuliani
New York, E	Raymond J. Dearie
New York, W	Salvatore R. Martoche
North Carolina, E	Samuel T. Currin
North Carolina, M	Kenneth W. McAllister
North Carolina, W	Charles R. Brewer
North Dakota	Rodney S. Webb
Ohio, N	J. William Petro
Ohio, S	Christopher K. Barnes
Oklahoma, N	Layn R. Phillips
Oklahoma, E	Gary L. Richardson
Oklahoma, W	William S. Price
Oregon	Charles H. Turner
Pennsylvania, E	Edward S. G. Dennis, Jr.
Pennsylvania, M	David D. Queen
Pennsylvania, W	J. Alan Johnson
Puerto Rico	Daniel F. Lopez-Romo
Rhode Island	Lincoln C. Almond
South Carolina	Henry Dargan McMaster
South Dakota	Philip N. Hogen
Tennessee, E	John W. Gill, Jr.
Tennessee, M	Joe B. Brown
Tennessee, W	W. Hickman Ewing, Jr.
Texas, N	James A. Rolfe
Texas, S	Daniel K. Hedges
Texas, E	Robert J. Wortham
Texas, W	Helen M. Eversberg
Utah	Brent D. Ward
Vermont	George W. F. Cook
Virgin Islands	James W. Diehm
Virginia, E	Elsie L. Munsell
Virginia, W	John P. Alderman
Washington, E	John E. Lamp
Washington, W	Gene S. Anderson
West Virginia, N	William A. Kolibash
West Virginia, S	David A. Faber
Wisconsin, E	Joseph P. Stadtmueller
Wisconsin, W	John R. Byrnes
Wyoming	Richard A. Stacy
North Mariana Islands	David T. Wood